
 

Sustainability Task Force Members:   
Cheri Chastain, Chair Danielle Baxter, Vice Chair Dave Donnan  William Loker   
Molly Marcussen Mandi McKay  Mark Stemen 

Agenda 
Sustainability Task Force 

A Committee of the Chico City Council 
 

Meeting of Thursday, July 11, 2019 – 5:30 p.m. 
    Municipal Center - 421 Main Street, Conference Room No. 1 in the Council Chambers 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

2. APPROVE MAY 30, 2019 MEETING MINUTES - Draft 05/30/19 minutes attached. 

3. FOLLOW-UP: CLIMATE ACTION PLAN “TRIAL” PUBLIC OUTREACH LISTENING SESSION (STF 
Chair Chastain) - At its May 30, 2019 meeting, the STF held a “trial” public outreach/listening session 
to support development of an updated Climate Action Plan. The format allows community groups to 
receive a simple training, host listening sessions, and report back results for use by the consultant that 
will update the City’s CAP. The STF will receive a summary of the results of the May 11th listening 
session and discuss next steps. Attached are the Listening Session Outline, updated CAP Listening 
Session Presentation, and notes from the “trial” Listening Session.   

4. 2018/19 CIVICSPARK INITIATIVE: UPDATE (CivicSpark Fellow Charter) – The STF will receive an 
update regarding CivicSpark Fellow Charter’s efforts to identify Cool Zones in the community, the status 
of the Extreme Heat Preparedness Plan, and other CivicSpark initiatives. 

5. SAMPLE CLIMATE ACTION PLAN (CAP) REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (Director Vieg) – The City 
Council directed preparation of an update to the City’s Climate Action Plan (CAP) to be consistent with 
new State GHG reduction goals. Attached are sample Request for Proposals from two California 
jurisdictions that recently initiated CAP updates.  

6. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS - These items are provided for the STF’s information. Although the 
STF may discuss the items, no action can be taken at the meeting. Should the STF determine that 
action is required, an item may be included on a subsequent agenda. 

7. BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR -  Members of the public may address the STF at this time on any 
matter not already listed on the agenda, with comments being limited to three minutes. The STF cannot 
take any action at this meeting on requests made under this section of the agenda.   

8. ADJOURNMENT - Next meeting scheduled for August 22, 2019  
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   05/30/19 STF Meeting Minutes (Draft) 
    Listening Session Outline     
    Updated Listening Session Presentation 
    Notes from “Trial” Listening Session  
    Sample Climate Action Plan RFPs 
 
 
Agenda available from the City’s website at www.ci.chico.ca.us.under “Minutes & Agendas” 
Prepared:  07/03/19      Community Development Department  
Posted:  07/03/19      421 Main Street, 2nd Floor, Chico, CA 95928 
Prior to:   5:30 pm      (530) 879-6800  
 

Please contact the City Clerk at 896-7250 should you require an agenda in an alternative format or if you need to 
request a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting. This request should be 
received at least three working days prior to the meeting in order to accommodate your request. 



 

 

CITY OF CHICO SUSTAINABILITY TASK FORCE 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF  

MAY 30, 2019 
 

Municipal Center 
421 Main Street 

Council Chambers, Conference Rm. 1 
 
STF Members Present:  Cheri Chastain, Chair 
     Daniel Baxter, Vice Chair 
     William Loker 
     Molly Marcussen 
     Mandi McKay 
     Mark Stemen 
                
STF Members Absent:  Dave Donnan 
             
Staff Members Present:  Brendan Vieg, Deputy Director, CDD  
                
Guests Present:   Ann Ponzjo, Pamm Larry, Maggie Scarpa, Jared Geiser, Lauren 

Kohler, Eric Nilssen, Steven Marquardt, Sierra Baker, Bryce Goldstein, 
Chris Nelson, Casey Parks      

        
  
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

Chair Chastain called the meeting to order at 5:30pm. STF members, City staff, and guests were 
present as noted.  
 
STF member Stemen who served as the STF Chair for 5+ years was recognized by the STF for his 
extraordinary leadership and for the many STF achievements he led.  
 

2. APPROVE APRIL 11, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
 

The 04/11/19 STF Meeting Minutes were approved 6-0-1 (Donnan absent). 
 

3. CLIMATE ACTION PLAN “TRIAL” PUBLIC OUTREACH LISTENING SESSION 
 

STF Chair Chastain presented a draft format for public outreach/listening sessions to support 
development of an updated Climate Action Plan. The format is intended to allow community 
groups to receive a simple training, host listening sessions, and report back results for use by the 
consultant that will update the City’s CAP. Chair Chastain gave the presentation (see attached 
presentation), and then invited attendees to break into four groups and share with facilitators (STF 
members) their ideas on the following topics: 1) suggestions for GHG emission reductions 
(Transportation, Energy, and Solid Waste), 2) potential sequestration and mitigation projects, 3) 



 

 

suggestions for incentives to encourage and promote community action, and 4) potential funding 
sources. 

Following the hour long breakout session, the STF reconvened and discussed lessons learned and 
next steps.  The following topics were discussed: 

 Keep the request for SMART input, but don’t require it.  Facilitators can help. 

 Recognize the need to be adaptive regarding soliciting input (e.g., rotation timeframes, 
presentation of material, etc.) based on the different audiences.  

 Changes to the PowerPoint presentation, including highlighting Council’s Declaration of a 
Climate Emergency 

Attendees also provided comments on the listening session, inquired about how the information 
would be utilized, and highlighted their desire to sponsor their own listening sessions using the 
newly developed format. Attendees provided their e-mail addresses and requested that the STF let 
them know when the format has been finalized and is ready for use.  

4. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS 
  

None. 
 
5. BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR 
 

None. 
 
9. ADJOURNMENT 
  

There being no further business from the STF, the meeting adjourned at 7:05pm to the meeting of 
Thursday, July 11, 2019 (or an alternate date).  
 
 
                                                                                                     
Date Approved   Brendan Vieg, Deputy Director, CDD 



5/22/2019

1

Climate Action Plan 
Listening Session

Trial Run 
MAY  30,  2019

Listening 
Session 
Structure

Introductions

Climate Change & Chico 

Emission Trends & Progress to Date 

Desired Outcomes of Listening Session

Climate Action Plan (CAP) 2020



5/22/2019

2

Climate Change

How will it 
effect Chico?

Rising Temperatures

 Increase in average day and 
nighttime temps 

 Increase in the number of 
extreme heat days 

4

16

26

41

54

Historical
Average

2030 2050 2070 2090

Days above 104.8°F



5/22/2019

3

Increased Risk of Wildfire

 Prediction of future fire risk are uncertain

 However – rising temperatures, changes 
in rainfall patterns and reduced vegetation 
moisture content can cause an increase in 
the frequency and intensity of wildfires

Changes in Precipitation & 
Increased Risk of Flooding

 Oscillating between prolonged periods 
of drought and risks of flooding 
 Increase in the frequency and intensity 
of storms 

 Decrease in snowpack and water 
supplies



5/22/2019

4

Emissions calculated under three sectors
 Transportation 
 Energy (electrical and natural gas)
 Solid Waste 

Climate Action Plan (CAP) 2020

Goal: Reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions 
25% below 2005 levels by 2020

 Phase I: 10% reduction 

 Phase II: Remaining 15% reduction

Emissions calculated as MTCO2e
 MTCO2e = metric tons of carbon dioxide (CO2) equivalent

 Allows multiple GHGs to be expressed and compared using a common unit 

2005 Baseline Breakdown 

Transportation 
65%

Energy
31%

Solid Waste
4% Transportation

 Calculated from gasoline and diesel 
sales 

Energy
 Includes electricity and natural gas
 Calculated from data provided by PG&E

Solid Waste
 Calculated using tonnage of solid waste 

sent to landfill

652,258 MTCO2e



5/22/2019

5

Emissions Trends – Transportation   

 Sector with most significant 
decline in GHG emissions, but 
remains the largest source of 
GHG emissions

32% Reduction in GHG emissions 

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

M
TC
O
2
e

 Gas  Diesel

Emissions Trends – Energy

7% Reduction in GHG emissions 

 Emission reductions are due to 
changes in sources of electricity 
distributed by PG&E and 
increases in Chico rooftop solar

 Electricity and natural gas 
consumption declined in the 
commercial sector but increased 
in the residential sector 

 ‐

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 ‐

 50,000

 100,000

 150,000

 200,000

 250,000

 300,000

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

M
M
B
tu

M
TC
O
2
e

Residential Emissions Commercial Emissions  Commercial Energy Use  Residential Energy Use



5/22/2019

6

Emissions Trends – Solid Waste   

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

2005 2007 2009 2011 2013 2015 2017

M
TC
O
2
e

7% Reduction in GHG emissions 

 Declined from 2007 to 2014
 Since 2014, tonnage has been 

steadily increasing 
 Most of the solid waste 

fluctuations are believed to 
result from the ebb and flow of 
construction in Chico

 ‐

 100,000

 200,000

 300,000

 400,000

 500,000

 600,000

 700,000

2005 2010 2017

M
TC
O
2
e

Emissions Trends – Total Emissions

Transportation

32%

7%

Solid Waste

7%

Energy



5/22/2019

7

Where are 
we now?  

Where are 
we going?

 As of 2017, 23% below baseline year (2005) 
levels

 On track to meet 25% reduction goal, but 
analysis shows a number of concerning trends
 Particularly an overall increase in overall electricity use –
while the grid may be improving, we are still using more

 Senate Bill 32 requires a reduction in GHG 
emissions to 40% below 1990 levels by 2030
 NOTE: Changes baseline year from 2005 ‐> 1990

 Chico City Council has voted to adopt the state’s 
new goals and to create a new Climate Action 
Plan 

 Sustainability Task Force to transition to a 
standing commission 

Desired 
Feedback

1) Suggestions for GHG emission reductions from:
 Transportation 
 Energy – electrical and natural gas
 Solid Waste 

2) Potential sequestration & mitigation projects

3) Suggestions for incentives and pathways to 
encourage and promote community action

4) Potential funding sources 



5/22/2019

8

SMART Input

 Specific 

Measurable

 Attainable

 Relevant

 Time‐bound 

Examples

Encourage bicycling
 SMART: Conduct a bicycle education 
campaign in the spring of each year to 
include at least one workshop, one 
event, and three school safety visits

Carpool
 SMART: Work with large employers to 
develop and launch at least one 
incentivized carpool program in 2020 

All ideas are welcome… the SMARTer you can make them the better!

Questions?



City of Chico Sustainability Task Force 
Climate Action Plan | Solutions Oriented Listening 
Session Process 
 
A Climate Action Plan (CAP) was adopted by the Chico City Council in 2012.  Subsequently, a 
Sustainability Task Force (STF) was appointed to assist with implementation of the plan.  The existing 
CAP includes greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction goals and projects through 2020.  On Feb 19, 2019, 
the Chico City Council voted to adopt new GHG reduction goals in accordance with the State of 
California and to update the existing CAP.   
 
New greenhouse gas reduction targets 
40% reduction below 1990 levels by 2030 
80% reduction below 1990 levels by 2050 
 
Purpose of Listening Sessions 
The City will be hiring a consultant to update the CAP.  In an effort to keep the momentum our City has 
in addressing climate change and get a head-start on the update process, we are inviting the 
community to host listening sessions.  Listening sessions should seek to engage a broad and 
representative cross-section of the community in gathering priorities for inclusion in an update to the 
CAP.  The STF seeks to hear a range of voices from within the community on what actions are the 
most important and/or impactful.  It is important that as many voices as possible are heard and that the 
community fully supports and is ready to assist with implementation of the updated CAP.   
 
Desired Feedback: 
There are four points of desired feedback we are seeking as part of the listening session process: 

1. Recommendations for GHG reductions from three main sources: 
a. Transportation 
b. Energy (thermal and electrical) 
c. Solid waste 

2. Recommendations for sequestration and mitigation projects 
3. Suggestions for how to engage the entire community 
4. Ideas for funding and incentives 

 
It is important for session hosts to do their best to stay within these four areas in order to create 
consistency from the various groups who will be hosting sessions around the community.   
 
Suggested Session Structure  
Listening sessions can take whatever structure is most appropriate for the group hosting.  If there is a 
structure already in use by the hosting group to gather feedback, please feel free to use it.  If not, below 
are some suggestions.   
 
Each session should include at least one dedicated moderator and at least one note taker.  If you 
anticipate a larger group (15+), you may want to consider having four notetakers - one for each of the 
topic areas - to help capture input.     
 
 
 



It is not required but moderators should help guide their participants to SMART suggestions: 
- Specific 
- Measurable 
- Attainable 
- Relevant 
- Time-bound 

 
STF Commits to: 

- Provide powerpoint slides with background info 
- Provide at least a 30 min support and background training prior to hosted listening session 
- Keeping a calendar of scheduled listening sessions and will assist with promotion of sessions 
- Compile all collected feedback to be given to hired CAP consultant 

 
Listening Session Hosts Commit to: 

- Contacting STF prior to hosting a session to understand purpose and deliverables 
- Secure a space for hosting the session and schedule appropriately  
- Promote listening session to target audience 
- Utilize the provided background presentation/document to introduce and guide the conversation 
- Providing a written compilation of suggestions shared at their listening sessions to STF 

 
 
 
Thank you for helping our City meet its climate change commitments! 





















City of Chico | Sustainability Task Force  
Trial Climate Action Plan Listening Session Comments | May 30, 2019 
Comments typed as they were written 
 
GREENHOUSE GAS REDUCTION SUGGESTIONS 
Transportation  

● Size appropriate buses based on average number of riders / bus / routes 

● Increase walkable downtown / neighborhoods 

● Free bike tune-ups 

● Communal maintenance stations 

● Central corridor – more frequent drop-offs (15 min max wait times) 

● Trolleys – people movers downtown 

● City supported ride-share for out of town trips  

● EV chargers  
o Ease of use, location, accessibility 
o Redwoodenergy.org 

● Better bus system – more frequent routes / stops 
o Service between Chico State and shopping hubs  
o Reliability  
o Better promo 

● EV shuttle buses – on app (Lyft/Uber style) 
o SF Muni 

● Transit style bus system – rapid transit  

● Smaller buses 

● More bike lanes – protected on major corridors 

● Safety workshops – bikes and vehicles  

● Gas tax 

● Bike & scooter sharing  

● Car sharing incentives 

● Mobile friendly development – multimodal & alternative transportation friendly  

● No parking cars downtown 

● Periodically shut streets to vehicles  

● Cooking oil grease recycling for biodiesel production  
 
Post-it Note: 
Best EV chargers in west (NV, AZ, CA, OR, WA) were c/o Redwood Coast Energy Authority which uses 
Charge Point and Greenlots.  

● Grant info – redwoodenergy.org 
o Locations 
o Ease of use  
o Cost (approx. $3 full charge) 
o Assistance  

● More info – Chris Nelson (2017 Volt)  
P: 520-5973 
E: chris4pax@gmail.com (unsure if email address is correct)  



 
Energy 

● Rooftop solar  
● Industrial roof solar 
● Open space (e.g. Bidwell Ranch) windmills  
● Community Aggregate Energy Company 
● Publicly owned utility for city/county 

o CCA – Community Choice Aggregation  
● Million-Watt Challenge – again!  
● DIY energy toolkits  
● Increase public education on energy use 
● Increase community solar panels – beyond ind. (independent?) rooftops  
● 100% electric for new construction (natural gas free) 
● Retrofits to electrification 
● Energy efficiency retrofits in residential homes 
● Water use = energy use 

o Water conservation projects 
o Drought resistant landscaping  

● Smaller housing  
● Co-opted housing / house sharing  

o Communal living  
 
Solid Waste  

● Ban single use Styrofoam & other single use (PET 4-7) 
o City council – take action  

● Curbside composting pick-up 
o Invest in industrial composting (consult with Recology) 

● Waste diversion for students on and off campus 

● Increase public education on reducing and recycling 
o Waste hotline for info 
o Printed info  
o Landlords, renters 

● Refillable containers action? 

● Beyond bags…? 

● Revise food regulations to allow refills for carry out  

● Integrate biochar  

● Use organic waste to enhance soil and Paradise recovery  

● Labeling for carbon footprint of products 
o Support farm-to-fork 
o Extend this to manufactured goods, encourage shorter commodity chains, local 

production, municipal enterprises 
● Repair cafes (alternative to throw away) 

o Fix it community events 
 
 
 



SEQUESTRATION AND MITIGATION 
 
Urban Agriculture  

● Victory garden campaign – 42% produce  
o Community / Personal – Food Not Lawns 
o Need assessment – how to measure? 
o Round-up ​�​ ​1pm  
o Dual-zoning  

● Victory gardens – 2,000 new gardens by 2024 (between community gardens, blitz, food not 
lawns) 

o Conduct existing garden inventory 
● Local focus on economy (mitigation) 

● Planting trees, food forests  
o Parking lots & alleys – tax incentives? 

● Native, perennial landscaping, permaculture 
o Permaculture – building or development requirement for new construction  

● Regenerative agriculture program  

● Conservation of grasslands / Urban sprawl 

● Prescribed burning / biochar  
 
 
 
FUNDING 
 
*Only supporting Green/B Corp (?) 

● Grants 
o Bloomberg Trust 
o Clean energy contest (5 million) 
o Transportation grants 

● Have staff research grants / volunteer grant writers 

● Climate Fund: getting donations from businesses, climate trust 

● Price to pollute / Price to participate (incentivizing low emission projects)  

● Small tax to put into climate fund  
o Tax on natural gas, food waste, one cent sales tax 

● Public bank for funding GHG reduction  
o Model: state of North Dakota  

● Municipal bonds 

● Support of local economy (buying local) 
 
 
 
INCENTIVES FOR COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 
 

● Farmers market – organizations or (un)established groups tabling at farmers market once a 
week to spread awareness on CAP and ways for folks to get involved in GHG emission reduction  

● Participatory budgeting meetings by neighborhood 



o Gathering funding for individual neighborhoods to make collective change without red 
tape 

o Including individualized visions and incentives 
● Hosting clothing swaps in efforts to reduce clothing and material waste including education 

about resource usage, find local businesses to host once a month 
● Climate emergency community meetings – giving people options for community engagement to 

mobilize folks connection to existing efforts in neighborhoods (soon) 
● Branding an active group or program that people can connect to with an inclusive mission 

statement or goal (avoiding polarity), identifying local groups or businesses that will support, 
offering buy-in using our dollars as a vote for their support  

● Community victory garden parties  
o With intention to mobilize community members around the issue of local food  
o Connecting to actions focusing on sequestration  

● Public forums held by sustainability affairs council CSU with the goal of educating on climate 
change and CAP, creating a sense of community action  

● Green New Deal town hall (cognizant of groups that are skeptical and ​reach out​) 
● Developing public service program focusing on ages 16 – 35 reaching for zero waste, food 

security, water issues  
o Volunteer based, offering youth transferrable skills, semester based 

● Climate education and action presentations K-12 
o 20 classrooms 1x per year, raising next generation to be involved 

 


































